
JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 1   

BOARD OF COUNTY COMMISSIONERS  
WASHOE COUNTY, NEVADA 

 
TUESDAY  10:00 A.M. JANUARY 28, 2014 
 
PRESENT: 

David Humke, Chairman 
Bonnie Weber, Vice Chairperson* 
Marsha Berkbigler, Commissioner  

Kitty Jung, Commissioner 
Vaughn Hartung, Commissioner 

 
Nancy Parent, County Clerk 

John Slaughter, County Manager 
Paul Lipparelli, Legal Counsel 

 
 The Washoe County Board of Commissioners convened at 10:01 a.m. in 
regular session in the Commission Chambers of the Washoe County Administration 
Complex, 1001 East Ninth Street, Reno, Nevada. Following the Pledge of Allegiance to 
the flag of our Country, the Clerk called the roll and the Board conducted the following 
business: 
 
14-55 AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
 Jeanne Herman said she was sorry about being so hard on the Board 
regarding the water rights purchase, but she felt it was a citizen’s duty to dissuade them 
from making a decision they might later regret. She discussed property rights within the 
County and her issues with the Common Core academic standards.  
 
10:05 a.m.* Commissioner Weber arrived.  
 
 Ms. Herman said the voters in Warm Springs were peeved because they 
were banned from voting at the shooting range, which had been their polling place. She 
stated that meant they would have to drive 25 to 30 miles one way to vote at the County 
Complex on 9th Street, and she asked if the County would provide transportation for 
anyone who wanted to vote. She felt it would be cheaper to allow them to vote out where 
they lived. 
 
 Cathy Brandhorst spoke about her having to move from the Riverboat 
Hotel and other things of concern to herself. 



PAGE 2  JANUARY 28, 2014  

 
 Katherine Snedigar said Palomino Valley was not a subdivision, but the 
County continually tried to apply suburban and urban regulations to the area. She stated 
they imposed the revegetation of an aggregate pit located in an agricultural area on the 
General Improvement District. She said the only public services the area got were voting 
and the Citizen Advisory Board (CAB), which had been eliminated and restricted, and 
she wanted to know why. She said the Palomino Valley received no public services from 
the County, and she was tired of paying taxes on things she did not receive. She was also 
tired of being denied or restricted on the things they did have, and this was formal notice 
she wanted it changed. 
 
 Sam Dehne spoke about attending the meetings of local governments and 
about the Reno Gazette-Journal (RGJ).  
 
14-56 AGENDA ITEM 4 – ANNOUNCEMENTS 
 
Agenda Subject: “Commissioners’/Manager’s Announcements, Requests for 
Information, Topics for Future Agendas, Statements Relating to Items Not on the 
Agenda and any ideas and suggestions for greater efficiency, cost effectiveness and 
innovation in County government. (No discussion among Commissioners will take 
place on this item.)” 
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, announced the February 10, 2014 
concurrent meeting with the Board of County Commissioners, the Cities of Reno and 
Sparks, the Washoe County School District (WCSD), and the District Health Board 
would be held at 8:30 a.m. at Reno City Hall. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said the Village at the Peak Master Plan 
Amendment was rejected by the Regional Planning Commission and, if there was to be 
an appeal, it had to come from the County; and she requested it be put on the next agenda 
for discussion. She said she would to like have a discussion on how the County would 
handle legislative issues during the 2015 Legislative Session since Chairman Humke 
would no longer be on the Board and our Legislative guru was now the County Manager. 
She felt that discussion should occur while the Chairman and the Vice Chairperson were 
still on the Commission, and she requested it be put on an agenda sometime soon. 
 
 Commissioner Weber said there were issues with people camping out in 
the park in Gerlach during Burning Man. She asked if there was an ordinance that would 
apply to that situation, and that it be brought to the Board as an agenda item. She stated 
she attended the Reconstruction of the V&T Railway Commission meeting, which she 
served on for eight years, and she asked if anyone else wanted to attend the meetings to 
see what it was like. She said five counties were involved in the Commission, and each 
County was being asked to financially support it. She noted Washoe County had provided 
support in the past, and she asked if there was any money in the upcoming budget that 
could be used to support the Commission. She also asked it be put on an agenda in the 
near future. 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 3   

 
 Commissioner Hartung asked when the issue with Regional Animal 
Services would be heard. Mr. Slaughter advised an internal team was looking at that 
issue, and he would have a better answer after tomorrow’s meeting; but he anticipated it 
would take at least 1.5 months to come up with a recommendation. Commissioner 
Hartung requested periodic updates. Mr. Slaughter replied it would be put on the agenda 
for regular updates. Commissioner Hartung stated he would have staff distribute the last 
Nevada Lands Task Force agenda and packet. He said the Task Force was narrowing 
down some dollar figures and those numbers and comparisons were interesting. He 
believed there needed to be a public conversation about them. He noted the Task Force 
could only advise the State and the final decisions would be made at the State level.  
 
 Commissioner Jung requested the Cities of Reno and Sparks be involved 
when looking at Animal Services, because they were also a tax-override contributor. She 
said when the Nevada Lands Task Force item was brought back, she requested the item 
include a little history about Nevada’s statehood and what happened regarding Nevada’s 
lands.  
 
 Chairman Humke noted the Elko County Commission declared the 
common Raven a nuisance by resolution and indicated they wished it to be treated as a 
predator due to the Raven’s attacks on the Sage Grouse. He stated he had not analyzed 
the resolution yet to be able to determine whether a similar resolution should be asked for 
in Washoe County. He said the Elko County Commission sent the resolution to the 
Governor and to the Nevada Department of Wildlife (NDOW). He asked the County 
Manager to have the appropriate staff monitor the situation and to look into if there was a 
Raven problem in Washoe County.  
 
 Chairman Humke stated Thomas Hall pointed out that on December 16, 
2013, the grand opening of a new terminal and emergency-operations center at the Stead 
Airport was celebrated. He said the center was called the Freedom Flight Center and 
honored Stead’s rich military history. He said Mr. Hall was the President of the Reno-
Stead Airport Association Inc., and Mr. Hall noted in the Association’s newsletter the 
passing of Winthrop Dale and Thornton Audrain, who were some of the area’s leading 
aviation citizens. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung noted the passing of local philanthropist, T.J. Day. 
  
 Commissioner Weber requested a presentation by the Reno-Tahoe Airport 
Authority, because a lot had been going on, especially at the Reno-Stead Airport. She 
noted the grand opening was well attended and the facility had a meeting room, which 
could be used by members of the community.  
 
 Commissioner Weber said she would work with the people of Warm 
Springs and the Registrar of Voters to find out if other voting locations could work, since 
the Registrar of Voters determined there were safety issues with the Regional Shooting 
Facility.  



PAGE 4  JANUARY 28, 2014  

 
14-57 AGENDA ITEM 5 – HUMAN RESOURCES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Presentation of Excellence in Public Service Certificates honoring 
the following Washoe County employees who have completed essential employee 
development courses.” 
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, recognized the following employee for 
successful completion of the Excellence in Public Service Certificate Programs 
administered by the Human Resources Department: 
 
 Essentials of High Performing Teams 

 Marilyn Urbani, Finance Comptroller’s Office 
 
 Essentials of Personal Effectiveness 
 Marilyn Urbani, Finance Comptroller’s Office 
 
14-58 AGENDA ITEM 6 
 
Agenda Subject: “Acknowledge Washoe County Department of Social Services 
receiving Agency of the Year Award from the Human Services Network.” 
 
 Erik Schoen, Human Services Network Director, said the Network was a 
dynamic collaborative of health and human services providers from throughout the 
region, and several County departments had been members since its inception. He said 
every year the work of the agencies, organizations, and people were recognized. He 
stated 170 awards had been presented over the years and this year was the presentation of 
the 25th annual Human Services awards. He said he could not think of a better agency 
than Washoe County Social Services, under the direction of Kevin Schiller, to represent 
the great work the Network did. He read the nomination letter from Catholic Charities of 
Northern Nevada, which referenced the Kids to Seniors Corner. He advised it was a 
collaboration between Catholic Charities, the St. Vincent’s programs, Social Services, the 
Health District, Senior Services, the Reno Police Department, and the Sheriff’s Office. 
He said during the 10 years of the program, over 70,000 children, families, and seniors 
were provided with food, immunizations, medical referrals, and other assistance.  
 
 Mr. Schoen stated the second partnership referred to in the nomination 
letter was the Crossroads program, which was a cooperative effort between Social 
Services and Catholic Charities. He said it was established in 2011 and worked to reduce 
recidivism by providing shelter to people who graduated from the homeless shelters’ 
substance abuse treatment programs. He stated Social Services provided the social 
workers, the case managers, and the program’s support. He said it was estimated the 
program saved the community $4 million per year, while ensuring the people continued 
to live a life with dignity, quality, and hope for the future.  
 
 Mr. Schoen read and presented the award for the 2013 Agency of the Year 
to the Washoe County Social Services Department. Mr. Schiller said the beauty of this 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 5   

award was it was not about him, but was about recognizing the work the staff did every 
day. He stated Social Services would not be the agency of the year if it was not for every 
County department, the Board, and everyone else who contributed. He thanked the 
County for taking risks with the Department and for trusting them. He also recognized 
Ken Retterath, Social Services Interim Director, who led a lot of those causes. Mr. 
Retterath also expressed his thanks to the staff of Social Services. He said when any 
department in the County received an award, it was because of teamwork, which started 
with the Commissioners, went through the Manager’s Office, and down to the staff.  
 
 The Social Services staff members present stated their name and title.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 6 be acknowledged. 
 
 CONSENT AGENDA – AGENDA ITEMS 7A THROUGH 7G(2) 
 
 In response to the call for public comment, Cathy Brandhorst discussed 
people stealing water from the Truckee River. 
 
14-59 AGENDA ITEM 7A 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve minutes for the Board of County Commissioners’ 
December 17, 2013 meeting.” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7A be approved. 
 
14-60 AGENDA ITEM 7B – ASSESSOR  
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve roll change requests, pursuant to NRS 361.768 and  
NRS 361.765, for errors discovered for the 2013/2014, 2012/2013, 2011/2012, 
2010/2011 secured tax roll and authorize Chairman to execute the changes described 
in Exhibit A and direct the Washoe County Treasurer to correct the error(s) 
[cumulative amount of decrease $2,205.63]--Assessor. (Parcels in various 
Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7B be approved, authorized, 
and directed. 
 



PAGE 6  JANUARY 28, 2014  

14-61 AGENDA ITEM 7C – FINANCE 
 
Agenda Subject: “Acknowledge receipt of the Interim Financial Report for Washoe 
County Governmental Funds for the six months ended December 31, 2013 - 
Unaudited--Finance. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7C be acknowledged. 
 
14-62 AGENDA ITEM 7D(1) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Second Amendment to Cooperative Agreement for 
Contractual Professional and Administrative Staff Services between the Western 
Regional Water Commission and Washoe County to reimburse the Community 
Services Department for staff services for the Western Regional Water Commission 
and the Northern Nevada Water Planning Commission. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7D(1) be approved. The 
Second Amendment to Cooperative Agreement for same is attached hereto and made a 
part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-63 AGENDA ITEM 7D(2) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Water Rights Banking Agreement between Washoe 
County and RT Merchant, LLC, conveying 101.33 acre-feet of Truckee River water 
rights appropriated under Permit No. 63449; and approve a Water Rights Banking 
Agreement between Washoe County and Toll South Reno, LLC, conveying 190.3 
acre-feet of Truckee River water rights appropriated under Permit No. 63449, 
73936, and 83108 to be banked with Washoe County in support of future 
development in the Truckee Meadows area. (Commission District 2.)” 
 
 Commissioner Weber noted there was not a lot of explanation regarding 
how this item worked. Vahid Behmaram, Water Rights Manager, said the banking 
agreements were with Toll South Reno, LLC, who was actively recording subdivision 
maps in the Damonte Ranch area. He stated the water rights were main-stem Truckee 
River water rights, which were being exercised under the existing wholesale agreement 
between Washoe County and the Truckee River Water Authority (TMWA). He said Toll 
South was a homebuilder, and all of the 190.3 acre-feet would go towards the subdivision 
maps. Commissioner Weber asked how RT Merchant, LLC was involved and was that 
the company that was involved with the Northgate Golf Course. Mr. Behmaram replied 
RT Merchant was an individual and was the water-rights broker, but he did not know if 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 7   

he had any association with the Golf Course. He said the reason the banking agreement 
was being executed with RT Merchant was because the water rights that would be ending 
up with Toll South were brokered and went through RT Merchant. He stated Pete 
Simeoni, Deputy District Attorney, crafted some representations and warranties in the 
agreements to protect the County, and he thought everyone involved in this transfer of 
water rights should be subject to them.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7D(2) be approved. 
 
14-64 AGENDA ITEM 7D(3) – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve Intrastate Interlocal Contract between Public Agencies 
between Washoe County and the State of Nevada Department of Employment, 
Training and Rehabilitation Division Business Enterprises of Nevada for the 
continued operation of vending machine and concession services within County 
facilities as required by Nevada Revised Statutes Chapter 426.630 amending the 
commencement of the Contract to “upon approval.” (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7D(3) be approved. The 
Intrastate Interlocal Contract for same is attached hereto and made a part of the minutes 
thereof. 
 
14-65 AGENDA ITEM 7E(1) – DISTRICT COURT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Reappoint two attorney members and one non-attorney member 
to the Law Library Board of Trustees.  It is recommended that Clayton Brust serve 
as an attorney member for a two-year term expiring on January 31, 2016, Teresa 
Mentzer serve as a non-attorney member for a two-year term expiring January 31, 
2016, and Lynne Simons serve as an attorney member for a one-year term expiring 
January 31, 2015. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Clayton Brust serve as an attorney 
member for a two-year term expiring on January 31, 2016, Teresa Mentzer serve as a 
non-attorney member for a two-year term expiring January 31, 2016, and Lynne Simons 
serve as an attorney member for a one-year term expiring January 31, 2015 on the Law 
Library Board of Trustees. 
 



PAGE 8  JANUARY 28, 2014  

14-66 AGENDA ITEM 7E(2) – DISTRICT COURT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Retroactively acknowledge the agreement to accept a direct grant 
award from Nevada Administrative Office of the Courts, Court Improvement 
Program Grant from the Department of Health and Human Services, 
Administration for Children and Family Services [$45,000, with 33.33% in-kind 
match required] for one year beginning October 1, 2013, through September 30, 
2014; and authorize Finance to make necessary budget adjustments. (All 
Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7E(2) be acknowledged and 
authorized. 
 
14-67 AGENDA ITEM 7E(3) – DISTRICT COURT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Retroactively acknowledge grant award [$15,000, no County 
match required] effective July 1, 2013, through June 30, 2014 from the Lee F. Del 
Grande Foundation to the Second Judicial District Court for “Family Peace Center 
Track Expansion”; and direct  Finance to make the necessary budget adjustments.  
(All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7E(3) be acknowledged and 
directed. 
 
14-68 AGENDA ITEM 7F(1) – SHERIFF 
 
Agenda Subject: “Accept donation [$500] from the Reno Air Race Association to the 
Washoe County Sheriff’s Office for the Citizen Corps Program (CCP); and 
authorize Finance to make appropriate budget adjustments. (All Commission 
Districts.)” 
 
 On behalf of the Board, Commissioner Jung thanked the Reno Air Race 
Association for their donation to the Citizen Corps Program (CCP), who responded to 
community-wide emergencies and assisted with the evacuation of animals during natural 
disasters. She said they also provided public outreach and education, disaster response 
and preparedness, and enhanced child safety through the Child ID program.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 9   

 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7F(1) be accepted and 
authorized. 
 
14-69 AGENDA ITEM 7F(2) – SHERIFF 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve grant award [$75,000, no match required]; approve 
Amendment 2 Interlocal Contract between Las Vegas Metropolitan Police 
Department and the Washoe County Board of County Commissioners on behalf of 
the Washoe County Sheriff’s Office for reimbursement of expenses associated with 
Internet Crimes Against Children investigations; grant term is retroactive from 
12/16/13 to 5/31/14; and direct Finance to make the necessary budget adjustments. 
(All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7F(2) be approved and 
directed. The Amendment 2 Interlocal Contract for same is attached hereto and made a 
part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-70 AGENDA ITEM 7F(3) – SHERIFF 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve United States Department of Agriculture Office of 
Inspector General Cost Reimbursement Agreement retroactive to 12/30/13 through 
09/30/2014 to reimburse Washoe County Sheriff’s Office for overtime associated 
with participation on the Supplemental Nutrition Assistance Program task force.  
[Costs not to exceed $8,000]; and if approved, authorize Sheriff to execute the 
Agreement and direct Finance to make the necessary budget adjustments. (All 
Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7F(3) be approved, 
authorized, executed, and directed. 
 
14-71 AGENDA ITEM 7G(1) – SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Accept cash donations [$3,863.33] for the period of October 1, 
2013 through December 31, 2013; and direct Finance to make the appropriate 
budget adjustments.  (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 On behalf of the Board, Commissioner Jung thanked the citizens for their 
cash donations to Social Services. 
 



PAGE 10  JANUARY 28, 2014  

 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7G(1) be accepted and 
directed. 
 
14-72 AGENDA ITEM 7G(2) – SOCIAL SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Approve increase in the Adult Group Care (AGC) rate from 
$1,028 to $1,112 per month, which maintains consistency with State of Nevada rates, 
retroactive to January 1, 2014. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 7G(2) be approved. 
 
 BLOCK VOTE – AGENDA ITEMS 12 AND 16 
  
14-73 AGENDA ITEM 12 – FINANCE 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to acknowledge Publication of Notice of Intent 
to Augment Budgets and approve Resolution to augment the General Fund 
[$2,441,997] and approve the use of General Fund Carryover to cover previously 
approved unbudgeted expenditures for the fiscal year 2013-2014; and direct Finance 
to make the appropriate budget adjustments [net impact to County Budget is zero]--
Finance. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 12 be 
acknowledged, approved, and directed. The Resolution for same is attached hereto and 
made a part of the minutes thereof. 
 
14-74 AGENDA ITEM 16 – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to approve a reorganization of the County 
Manager’s Office and associated unclassified management position changes to 
include the following: abolish the position of Finance Director; reinstate a second 
Assistant County Manager position; reclassify the Director, Management Services to 
pay grade W in accordance with the job evaluation by Hay Group; change the title 
of Assistant Finance Director/Comptroller to County Comptroller; assign 
purchasing and risk management functions to the County Comptroller; and assign 
the budget function to the Director, Management Services within the Office of the 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 11   

County Manager. Net annual impact of these changes is estimated at $47,940--
Manager. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 16 be approved. 
 
14-75 AGENDA ITEM 11 – DISTRICT ATTORNEY 
 
Agenda Subject: “Introduction and first reading of an Ordinance amending the 
Washoe County Code at Chapter 5 (Administration and Personnel) by amending 
certain provisions relating to the maximum payout of accrued sick leave upon an 
employee’s death, separation, disability or termination from employment, and 
providing other matters properly relating thereto--District Attorney. (All 
Commission Districts.)” 
 

Nancy Parent, County Clerk, read the title for Bill No. 1704.  
 
 Cathy Brandhorst discussed her concerns regarding sick leave.  
 
  Bill No. 1704, entitled, "AN ORDINANCE AMENDING THE 
WASHOE COUNTY CODE AT CHAPTER 5 (ADMINISTRATION AND 
PERSONNEL) BY AMENDING CERTAIN PROVISIONS RELATING TO THE 
MAXIMUM PAYOUT OF ACCRUED SICK LEAVE UPON AN EMPLOYEE’S 
DEATH, SEPARATION, DISABILITY OR TERMINATION FROM 
EMPLOYMENT, AND PROVIDING OTHER MATTERS PROPERLY 
RELATING THERETO," was introduced by Commissioner Weber, and legal notice 
for final action of adoption was directed. 
 
14-76 AGENDA ITEM 9 – SENIOR SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to acknowledge update on the status of legal 
services for seniors including information on Mortgage Fraud and Predatory 
Lending--Senior Services. (All Commission Districts.)  Requested by Commissioner 
Berkbigler.”   
 
 Grady Tarbutton, Senior Services Director, said Senior Services used to 
provide legal services for seniors, but in the past year there was a contract with Nevada 
Legal Services (NLS) for foreclosure mitigation; and since July 1, 2013, approximately 
70 seniors had been served.  
 
 Mr. Tarbutton said there had been questions, so he asked the Attorney 
General’s (AG’s) Office to come and talk about their programs, because they were the 
lead agency in Nevada in dealing with foreclosure mitigation and the national foreclosure 
settlements. He noted the Supreme Court handled the foreclosure mediation programs. 



PAGE 12  JANUARY 28, 2014  

 
 Mr. Tarbutton introduced John McGlamery, Bureau of Consumer 
Protection Senior Deputy AG. Mr. McGlamery said he had been asked to discuss what 
they had going on regarding the National Mortgage Settlement and other mortgage 
related items. He explained the AG’s Office was a law enforcement agency that 
represented the State of Nevada and not individuals. He stated through the National 
Mortgage Settlement and their enforcement actions, those actions might wind up assisting 
people even though their remedies did not allow them to provide direct help to an 
individual.  
 
 Mr. McGlamery said the National Mortgage Settlement program was 
where 48 states entered into a settlement with five of the major banks. He stated the 
program made a cash payment to people that were foreclosed upon prior to the 
settlement. He stated the second part of the program was for the people in the foreclosure 
process to receive the backing of the State to help them out. He said the program 
provided for a single contact point so they would not be bounced back and forth. He 
stated there would be a full-blown review of their particular mortgage and a resolution 
would be determined. He said unfortunately nothing forced the bank to do anything 
because, as long as they looked at it, the bank complied with the program. He said the 
AG’s Office did keep track of those occurrences and, if they found enough of them, they 
would report them to the National Mortgage Administrator. He stated Ernest Figueroa, 
Chief Deputy Attorney General, was on the National Mortgage Settlement Commission, 
so Nevada had a voice on that Commission. He said the settlement only applied to the 
mortgages that were owned and serviced by the banks and, unfortunately, most 
mortgages were federally insured Fannie Mae, Freddie Mac, or Veterans Affairs (VA) 
mortgages. He said the AG’s Office had no jurisdiction over the federal government 
when it came to those types of mortgages, and people should contact the Consumer 
Finance Protection Bureau (CFPB) for help. He stated if someone had a mortgage both 
owned and serviced by a bank, the AG’s Office would take the complaint and monitor it 
through the process. He said they were achieving some success, because it was not 
always about the banks saying no. He stated some people could not afford the house no 
matter what was done or they just wanted a mortgage reduction when they could easily 
afford their current mortgage and, in those two situations, they would not get any help.  
 
 Mr. McGlamery said another program in the AG’s Office was the Home 
Again program, which took money from the settlement to create a way to help people 
directly. He stated the AG’s Office monitored and managed the program, but it was run 
by different agencies the AG’s Office contracted with. He said the first level of assistance 
was a series of Housing and Urban Development (HUD) certified counselors and the 
second level was NLS, which was used when an individual needed a lawyer’s help. He 
stated when someone called him and it was not a fit for the AG’s Office, he advised them 
to go to the Home Again program, which was free. He said if they needed further help, 
they would be directed to NLS and others who provided free services. He explained all of 
this assistance was not just for seniors.  
 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 13   

 Mr. McGlamery stated there were also enforcement programs, which 
came in to play when the mortgage servicers were committing fraud and deceptive trade 
regarding the servicing of the mortgages. He said some servicers were in the investigation 
stage and some were in the litigation stage. He stated there was a recent settlement with 
the Royal Bank of Scotland for their actions, and those payments went to the individuals 
involved. He said the AG’s Office tried to help individuals through the settlement 
process. 
 
 Chairman Humke said Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac were known for their 
extravagant compensation of their CEO’s, and he asked if they would be going away. Mr. 
McGlamery said it depended on who was asked, so he did not know that answer. He 
stated the bad thing about Fannie Mae and Freddie Mac was he never heard of them 
doing a principal reduction. He said this was where a lot of the problem with the 
paperwork came in. He stated someone would take in their paperwork and the 
information would be plugged into the black box with lights that would go green or red. 
He said they did not know what standards were used nor did the banks. He stated the big 
issue was that if the numbers were put in and they did not come back, they were 
considered to be red and that was it. He said if the data was older than 20 days, it had to 
be reentered, which was why the banks kept re-asking for stuff. He understood Fannie 
Mae and Freddie Mac were basically stretching the loans out, because they would not 
drop the principal of the loans. He stated the people in the Home Again program were 
HUD counselors and could point people in the right direction to get assistance. Chairman 
Humke asked if Mr. McGlamery had heard of any initiatives in Congress or the 
Administration to deviate away from the two agencies and start again. Mr. McGlamery 
replied he had not. Mr. Figueroa said he heard some speculation that they wanted to do 
away with them, but they were under conservatorship and were put under the stewardship 
of a new manager, who would probably make some wholesale changes in how they 
operated. He said until that happened, he did not think they would go away. Chairman 
Humke said that sounded like a positive step.  
 
 Mr. McGlamery said if the Commissioners had constituents with a 
problem, they could give them his number and he would be happy to sit down and talk 
with them. He stated if the AG’s Office could not help, they could at least direct them to 
the other available programs.  
  
 Commissioner Berkbigler said she had constituents contact her with 
concerns about their loans being sold many times, which often occurred without the 
homeowner being aware of the sales. She stated there was no paper trail and no way to 
get the paperwork, and she asked what the law was regarding those multiple sales. Mr. 
McGlamery replied the new Homeowners Bill of Rights said the homeowner had the 
right to obtain those documents. He said this was not a new issue because a mortgage 
would have been sold four or five times if a house was bought in the 1960’s. He stated 
their concern was the banks created an entity that was essentially a straw-owner of the 
loans, which essentially held the loans in trust for others. He said because they were 
trading the loans among themselves, it meant they did not have to go through the county 
recorder and they left no paper trail. He stated the practice was not illegal and was upheld 



PAGE 14  JANUARY 28, 2014  

by Supreme Court. He said they had no part in negotiating the National Mortgage 
Settlement, because he would never have signed off on it due to the number of black 
holes the negotiators left in it. He stated another concern was if Bank of America got 
upset with somebody and did not want to deal with them anymore, they would send the 
loan to somebody else. He said he could not prove it, but that was a pattern of conduct 
that was not illegal, but left a lot of people who did have National Mortgage Settlement 
qualified loans out of it. He stated the AG’s Office was following up on those servicers, 
but the servicers were under no obligation to do anything. He said the holes in the process 
basically left the homeowner with no hope, and there needed to be legislation at state and 
national levels to address those issues. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked what recourse homeowners had when 
they were clearly in over their heads, their loans had been sold over and over, and they 
were losing their homes. Mr. McGlamery said they needed to consult a private attorney, 
and several people in town were working on those types of situations.  
 
 Mr. McGlamery said when he was in law school if a note was made, it had 
to be kept because it was a security; but the banks actually destroyed a lot of them. He 
stated under the Homeowners Bill of Rights and the Foreclosure Mediation Program, the 
banks were supposed to bring that paperwork in with them. He said he had not heard 
anything lately, but a couple of years ago they were not and it created a mess.  
 
 Mr. McGlamery stated there were a couple of appeals going to the 
Supreme Court declaring the National Foreclosure Mediation Program as 
unconstitutional, which did not make any sense because the Court created the program. 
He said it was argued over a year ago and had been sitting ever since.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if this service had been provided under the 
Senior Law Project (SLP). Mr. Tarbutton replied it was until NLS took over SLP’s 
responsibilities. Commissioner Hartung said this item showed an expenditure of $52,500 
and Agenda Item 10 showed another $150,000 expenditure, and he asked if that much 
money was spent under the SLP. Mr. Tarbutton replied the total fund for the SLP had 
been over $800,000. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler noted the services provided by the SLP applied 
to all seniors who were residents of Washoe County regardless of their financial situation, 
and she asked if that was still true. Mr. Tarbutton replied it was, because serving all 
seniors was part of the terms of the contract with NLS. Commissioner Berkbigler said the 
NLS web site appeared to indicate there was an income cap. Mr. Tarbutton replied he 
would check that out with NLS.   
 
 Karl Hall stated he was the Directing Attorney for the SLP, which was a 
division of NLS. He said beginning in July 2013, assistance was provided in loan-
modification scam cases, which included assisting one senior. He stated an additional 
eight seniors were or had been assisted regarding general foreclosure litigation cases that 
did not necessarily involve fraud, but did involve some defects in the foreclosure process. 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 15   

He said 38 seniors had been counseled with respect to general housing and with NLS 
potentially assisting in loan modifications or other options to save their homes from 
foreclosure. He stated NLS provided a wide range of services on consumer-type issues 
and, if they could not help, they would find a pro-bono attorney or other services to assist 
them.  
 
 Mr. Hall said posters had been put at the senior centers and at the 
courthouses to get the word out to seniors that NLS was providing free legal services on a 
number of issues, and to check with NLS before buying, borrowing, or lending money, so 
they could identify possible scams before the seniors become involved.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if there was an age requirement. Mr. Hall 
replied the requirement was age 60. 
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that Agenda Item 9 be acknowledged. 
 
11:26 a.m. The Board convened as the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 

(TMFPD) and the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Board of Fire 
Commissioners. 

 
12:01 p.m. The Board adjourned as the Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District 

(TMFPD) and the Sierra Fire Protection District (SFPD) Board of Fire 
Commissioners. 

 
14-77 AGENDA ITEM 10 – SENIOR SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to acknowledge the Department’s report on 
options to provide pro bono and low cost legal services for seniors, and approve the 
proposed Agreement in Support of Pro-Bono and Low-Cost Legal Services for 
Elderly with Washoe Legal Services [$150,000 per year] through June 30, 2017 to 
implement the goals and objectives for these services included in the upcoming 
Master Plan for Aging Services; authorize the termination of two existing contracts 
with Nevada Legal Services and Washoe Legal Services; and authorize Chairman to 
execute Resolution of termination--Senior Services. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Grady Tarbutton, Senior Services Director, said what was before the 
Board would ensure there would be one legal services agency working directly with 
Senior Services to provide legal services to seniors. He advised there were currently 
contracts with two agencies in spite of the recommendations by the Advisory Board that 
there should be one agency. He said there had been meetings with Washoe Legal 
Services (WLS) and Nevada Legal Services (NLS) to try and reach an agreement on one 
of the agencies being the lead agency to work with Washoe County on the Master Plan 
for Aging Services. He stated providing legal services for seniors was one of the 12 



PAGE 16  JANUARY 28, 2014  

priorities of that Plan. He said the original agreement was to restore services back to 
where they were in 2007/08 and then build from there to try and meet the growing needs. 
He stated since no resolution was reached, the recommendation was to move forward 
with WLS as the contractor to receive the grant funds through 2017, because they had a 
long history of working in Washoe County with the indigent population, particularly with 
children. He stated a part of the agreement was WLS would provide up to $600,000 to 
support legal services for seniors above what the County provided, and they were 
committed to working with the County long term to meet the goals and objectives. He 
said NLS had been an excellent agency and either agency could provide the services and 
be the lead agency. He stated the services they provided and the resources they brought 
into Washoe County benefited seniors and that relationship should continue, but with 
WLS being the lead agency.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked regarding the conversation in Agenda 
Item 9, if this meant the County would be switching from NLS to WLS. Mr. Tarbutton 
replied the County was not, he said NLS had a grant from the State and had a lease 
agreement with the County for the space they used in the Senior Center, which would 
continue as long as they had that grant. He said this would terminate the two contracts 
and the money from the County would pass through WLS, but would continue to support 
NLS. Kevin Schiller, Assistant County Manager, said the Board heard a lot of discussion 
regarding the Master Plan for Aging Services and the legal services for seniors being a 
high priority. He stated moving forward, it would be about how to utilize the funds that 
were not tied to grants to expand services and increase capacity. 
 
 Karl Hall, Directing Attorney for the SLP, which was a division of NLS, 
said this proposal was essentially an end run around Anna Marie Johnson, NLS Executive 
Director, who applied for the grant from the federal government. He stated there were 
federal and other regulations that required NLS to perform to a certain standard and the 
services provided by NLS to seniors were monitored by the federal government and by 
the Nevada Aging and Disability Services Division (ADSD) to ensure those standards 
were met. He stated what happened was Paul Elcano, WLS Executive Director, wanted to 
be in charge of the purse strings and to call the shots. He said Mr. Elcano had never 
approached Ms. Johnson or himself, but had gone to Mr. Tarbutton about consolidating 
efforts due to his apparently having a pool of money from the sale of some property that 
he wanted to use. Mr. Hall said now Social Services wanted to terminate the contract 
with NLS, so Mr. Elcano could run the show. Mr. Hall said Mr. Elcano had not been 
running the show for years and NLS had been around for almost 20 years. He said when 
the SLP lost funding because of the County’s budget issues, NLS stepped in and obtained 
funding and got an office in place. He stated there was funding for three attorneys, a 
paralegal, and support staff. He stated he and Ms. Johnson opposed this, and Ms. Johnson 
should have the opportunity to address her concerns. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said she was concerned about doing anything 
that could create a problem for the seniors in need of legal services, and did not want to 
do anything that could result in NLS walking away from this program, particularly since 
they held the grant.  



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 17   

 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if Mr. Hall was suggesting the Board take 
more time to review this issue or to just deny it completely. Mr. Hall said he would 
request the Board deny it completely. He stated if the Board wanted a point of contact for 
the services being provided to the seniors, he was that point of contact with respect to the 
SLP. He said he could tell the Board what services were being provided and how they 
were being provided. He advised his services were being monitored by the ADSD on a 
regular basis. He said he had every intention of cooperating with WLS in providing a 
wide range of services, but he understood WLS was typically providing guardianship 
services for youth and seniors. He stated he would be happy to work on an agreement 
with Mr. Elcano to provide a wider range of services. He said the goal was to protect the 
seniors, to provide them with sound legal advice, and counsel them. He stated to cancel 
the contracts and put Mr. Elcano in charge was not appropriate when there were federal 
mandates in place based on the grant funding. Commissioner Hartung said he was 
concerned about cancelling the contracts, and he would like to put off any decision for at 
least one meeting to make sure the Board was going in the right direction.  
 
 Commissioner Jung said it was the national model to take the law out of 
Senior Services and the best practices indicated one agency should oversee those 
services. She stated the Board voted on eventually putting it under one agency, which 
was also the advice of the Advisory Board. She noted WLS was local with a local Board 
of Directors, while NLS was statewide. She believed both agencies were well qualified, 
but Mr. Tarbutton was saying he preferred one over another and it was his job to make 
that recommendation. She said it would not be the end of the world if the Board waited 
until the next meeting to make a decision.  
 
 Chairman Humke disclosed he met with John Berkich, former Assistant 
County Manager, and an ADSD staffer early last year to discuss the Board’s 
dissatisfaction with granting two contracts. He also disclosed he met with Mr. Elcano 
about the bidding of contracts with ADSD. He stated he personally was not thrilled with 
the idea of doing business with the ADSD, and he came close to not voting because the 
contract was bifurcated between two agencies.  
 
 Mr. Elcano said he was disappointed in Mr. Hall’s comments due to 
several of them being untrue, and secondly, this had never been about him but was about 
providing legal services to seniors. He stated WLS had been in existence for 50 years, 
started the Senior Law Project (SLP), and 10 percent of its work had always been for 
seniors in the area in which they provided legal services. He said coming up with money 
by selling a piece of property was not permissible for a non-profit to do. He stated the 
money went into a building fund to enable WLS to buy a better building, which would 
allow it to handle more people. He said the money raised to handle seniors came from 
various sources, including the work WLS did to provide foundational funds to start a 
guardianship program when Washoe County abandoned their program. He stated WLS 
raised $75,000 on short notice and took over the program. He said WLS did such a good 
job that the ADSD gave WLS the grant. He stated Mr. Hall’s implying that WLS did not 
answer to ADSD was incorrect, because he just spent two hours with them this morning 



PAGE 18  JANUARY 28, 2014  

getting the most glowing comments on how WLS had been handing the guardianship 
grant. He said Mr. Hall indicated this was some kind of end run, but five years ago he 
attempted to approach NLS and the County to start a joint program, because it made 
sense to him that two agencies should partner with one being the lead agency and the 
work should go to the agency that specialized in that particular area.  
 
 Mr. Elcano said he always felt there was a misunderstanding about the 
County’s senior population due to the County having the idea they had to be handled 
through senior centers. He stated there would be 100,000 seniors in the County within 
four or five years and 60,000 to 70,000 would be needy and would need legal services, 
which would not be handled at senior centers. He said there would need to be locations 
county-wide and three lawyers would be a pittance to handle that number of seniors. He 
stated as a result of that situation, WLS committed significant additional funds to handle 
seniors that could not be handled once the County pulled the rug out from under the SLP. 
He said he approached NLS to try and broker a situation where they could work together 
over the last four years, but they basically refused to discuss it. He stated the WLS Board 
made a determination to help those seniors who could not be helped at the Senior Center, 
and they obtained a grant from the State to do the guardianship work. He said for 
whatever reason, the County went forward with attempting to amalgamate the two 
contracts.  
 
 Mr. Elcano said there was also a legal issue about who should be paid the 
filing fees, but he believed there was no question that they should be paid to WLS to do 
the senior work under the statute. He asked why we would limit ourselves to one agency 
or two agencies in an uncoordinated approach, when this coordinated approach was 
available. He said NLS was a federally funded agency, which meant its Board had to be 
composed in relationship to the State’s population; therefore, most of its Board members 
were from Las Vegas. He stated WLS was a local agency and its Board members were 
from Washoe County. He said there was an outreach program set up based on race, 
geographic area, medical condition, and so on. He stated it was ready to roll as soon as 
the Board gave them the okay, because they would not go forward until they had a 
determination from the County.  
 
 Mr. Elcano said he would be happy if the Board explored what WLS had 
done and why, and he would encourage them to ask Judge Hardesty and Judge Douglas 
of the Nevada Supreme Court about their quality of service and Mr. Schiller about their 
providing the children in Washoe County with representation. He noted WLS found 
$500,000 in federal money that started the County’s Child Advocacy program and that 
money was made contingent on the County replacing it with a contract. He said with that 
money and the other steps taken, the County’s children received legal representation 
largely through the efforts of WLS and other people who were trying to make the County 
a better place to live.   
 
 Mr. Tarbutton said this was not an easy process. He stated Senior Services 
tried to resolve this issue with both agencies, but they were willing to go back as 
Commissioner Hartung suggested and to report back to the Board what the result of the 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 19   

attempt was. Chairman Humke asked if Mr. Tarbutton stood by the staff report. Mr. 
Tarbutton replied he did. Chairman Humke said he would support staff. Commissioner 
Berkbigler said her comments in no way indicated she did not trust what staff proposed. 
She stated she received calls from seniors in need of services, and she wanted to make 
sure the County’s seniors would be protected. She said she did not have an issue if staff 
felt this was the best approach. Commissioner Hartung concurred he was fully supportive 
of staff, but issues had been raised and it was incumbent on the Board to take the time to 
look at both sides of those issues.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung noted the two contracts ran until June 25, 2014. 
Mr. Tarbutton replied they did and could be renewed for an additional year. 
Commissioner Hartung believed there was time to vet this and to be able to make a more 
informed decision, because he did not want to make a decision that he would later regret.  
 
 Chairman Humke asked if WLS would walk if the contact was put off. 
Mr. Elcano replied they would not, because they were here to help the seniors. He felt the 
more this was investigated, the more he believed he would be validated. He said there 
was one issue about waiting until June 2014. He said WLS had already agreed with NLS 
that the $75,000 the County was putting in should be used at the Senior Center, but WLS 
was entitled to the filing fees. Commissioner Hartung said his intent was to bring this 
item back to next Board meeting.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 Commissioner Hartung made a motion to differ this item until next month. 
Commissioner Berkbigler seconded the motion.  
 
 Chairman Humke said that would be the February 11, 2014 meeting. 
Commissioner Weber suggested letting the Manager decide which meeting in February 
this item should be brought back. Commissioner Hartung and the seconder, 
Commissioner Berkbigler, agreed. On the call for the question the vote was 5-0 in favor 
of the motion. 
 
14-78 AGENDA ITEM 14 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Discussion and direction to staff regarding a proposal from  
the development community to review the timing of payment of fees for residential 
dwellings--Community Services. (All Commission Districts.) Requested by 
Commissioner Hartung.” 
 
 Dave Solaro, Community Services Director, said he met with the Builders 
Association of Northern Nevada (BANN), the Cities of Reno and Sparks, the Regional 
Transportation Commission (RTC) and the Truckee Meadows Water Authority (TMWA) 
where the builders had asked the County and the other jurisdictions to see if there was a 
way to postpone the payment of residential building permit fees from the date the permit 



PAGE 20  JANUARY 28, 2014  

was picked up to the date the Certificate of Occupancy was issued. He stated he was 
bringing that proposal before the Board for direction.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung clarified that BANN was not the driving force 
behind this proposal. He said he looked at this process as being a way of dealing with 
economic development, because it was very difficult for the County to physically create a 
job other than by hiring someone to work for the County. He stated he would classify this 
proposal under job development. He believed deferring the impact fees, some of which 
could be substantial, could be huge for a home builder. He said that deferral meant they 
would be paying for the services when the house was occupied and when there would be 
an impact to those services. He said in many cases that meant a substantial amount of 
money would be left in the developer’s hands for a longer period of time, while the 
County was not giving up anything. He stated he wanted a fiscal analysis done with 
respect to its effect on the County’s cash flow and its operating expenses. He noted the 
permitting fees would still be charged, and this proposal was only about delaying 
payment of the impact fees for water, sewer, and Regional Road Impact Fees (RRIF). He 
said when looking at RRIF, if the house was not occupied, there was no impact. He stated 
what was being asked for was waiting until issuance of the Certificate of Occupancy 
before charging all of the final fees.  
 
 Commissioner Jung said she understood this was brought to us by staff 
because the Cities of Reno and Sparks were working on something like this, and it would 
make more sense to have continuity across the region. She agreed this should be looked 
at, but there absolutely had to be an analysis of the economic impact in terms of the 
County’s cash flow.  
 
 Chairman Humke said on page 2 of the staff report, one of the bullet 
points indicated, “Sewer and Water may cause a lag in CIP processes or debt service and 
will require financial analysis.” He asked if that involved the County and its water 
resources. Mr. Solaro replied it did, and part of the process would be to work with 
TMWA to make sure it would not negatively impact the service provided. Chairman 
Humke asked if this had the potential to kill the merger between the County and TMWA. 
Mr. Solaro said he did not believe it would. He said staff would review this proposal and 
bring recommendations to the Board, so part of the process would be to have that 
discussion with TMWA.  
 
 Chairman Humke asked if there would be a competitive advantage for the 
County in doing this first and was that the intent of this item. Mr. Solaro said it was not, 
and it was made very clear to all of the entities’ staff that whatever was moved forward 
needed to be equal across all of the playing fields.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung clarified this proposal was not staff driven, and he 
asked for this item to be on the agenda. He noted TMWA had a representative at the 
meeting. He also noted the County was not the lead agency on this, and it was happening 
concurrently with the Cities of Sparks and Reno. He said it might behoove us to have a 
joint meeting to discuss this. He stated the direction he would like to give staff was to 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 21   

look at this process and how it would affect Washoe County. He said this would not 
change the impact fees, but would only look at the timing of paying those fees. He stated 
the City of Sparks was discussing it with their staff and the City of Reno would be having 
the same discussion.  
 
 Commissioner Jung asked for a staff report on what the County did or did 
not get if it developed residential in the unincorporated County. She said she believed the 
County would not get anything, because the property taxes would remain the same as 
would the sales taxes. She felt it would affect the County’s fire funds. John Slaughter, 
County Manager, said staff could do a standard analysis, but it might be difficult to turn it 
around quickly given all of the other projects staff was working on. Chairman Humke 
believed the impact on the fire agencies could be huge and unincorporated development 
was important for the support of the County’s fire agencies.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung said this conversation was starting with residential 
construction, but eventually an attempt would be made to apply it to commercial 
construction so the same process would be dealt with across the board. He stated it was a 
great idea to do a fiscal analysis on both residential and commercial impacts on the 
County’s infrastructure and fire services, which municipalities did regularly. He said 
those impacts was why the City of Sparks decided to de-annex the East Truckee Canyon. 
 
 Commissioner Jung requested staff also look at the national best practices.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung said it was important to direct staff to look at the 
impact of this on the County’s operating cash flow, because he would not want to move 
forward on this if there would be. He stated an idea he had regarding RRIF was what if it 
was looked at like a sales tax, so the actual number of receipts written by a particular 
business on any given month were looked at and they paid based on the number of their 
sales and the impact they created within a five year time period for example. He said the 
RTC was not crazy about that concept, because they would not get the money up front. 
He stated if a small business paid their RRIF fees up front and then went out of business a 
year and a half later, the RTC would win. He felt there was a fairer way to collect money 
so it could be kept in the hands of people who would spend it and move it through the 
economy for a longer period of time. He said if a business owner did not have to pay the 
impact fees upfront, they might be able to hire another person; and the developer might 
not have to borrow the money to pay those impact fees, which would keep them more 
solvent.  
 
 Jess Traver, BANN Government Affairs Director, said the proposal for the 
deferral of the fees came from the economic side of the industry and some other elected 
officials, and came to BANN to be a sponsor of that endeavor due to their involvement in 
a lot of Capital Improvement Programs (CIP). He stated the County had a CIP that 
identified the infrastructure needed for development and the funding mechanisms to 
fulfill those programs. He said they were talking with the Reno City Council on how to 
look at their fire department’s CIP and how to get out of some of the deficiencies that 
currently were in that program. He said other entities were doing this and it was helping 



PAGE 22  JANUARY 28, 2014  

those communities. He stated what they were asking for was having the charge for a 
service be paid closer to when the service would be needed. He said BANN did not want 
to hurt the financing mechanism that would get the infrastructure in place, because the 
construction industry lived off of that infrastructure. He stated what BANN wanted was 
to look at this, because money was being wasted due to having to pay the financing 
charges associated with the development if a service was not going to be needed for one 
or two years. He said it was driving people away who could build here and would take an 
interest in the community.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner Weber, 
which motion duly carried, it was ordered that staff be directed to review the proposal 
from the development community to the timing of the payment of fees for residential 
dwellings.  
 
14-79 AGENDA ITEM 20 – CLOSED SESSION 
 
Agenda Subject: “Possible Closed Session for the purpose of discussing labor 
negotiations with Washoe County, Truckee Meadows Fire Protection District and/or 
Sierra Fire Protection District per NRS 288.220.” 
 
1:04 p.m.  On motion by Commissioner Weber, seconded by Commissioner 

Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that the meeting 
recess to a closed session for the purpose of discussing negotiations with 
Employee Organizations per NRS 288.220.  

 
1:05 p.m.  The Board recessed. 
 
2:31 p.m. The Board reconvened with Chairman Humke absent and with Vice 

Chairperson Weber assuming the gavel. 
 
14-80 AGENDA ITEM 13 – COMMUNITY SERVICES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to acknowledge receipt of presentation and 
update on the Nevada and Northeastern California Greater Sage-Grouse Draft 
Land Use Plan Amendment and Environmental Impact Statement (Draft 
LUPA/DEIS), and provide possible comments that the Board would like forwarded 
to the Bureau of Land Management as part of the open commenting period ending 
on January 29, 2014--Community Services.  (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 Bill Whitney, Planning and Development Division Director, said the last 
meeting was a statewide meeting held in Winnemucca. He stated the focus of the meeting 
was the Environmental Impact Statement (Draft LUPA/DEIS) and the draft legislation 
being proposed by Senators Harry Reid and Dean Heller aimed at addressing the Sage 
Grouse issue in Nevada.  



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 23   

 
2:32 p.m. Chairman Humke arrived and assumed the gavel. 
 
 Mr. Whitney said many of the speakers took time to explain how people 
could comment to the Bureau of Land Management (BLM) on the Sage Grouse EIS. He 
stated Cory Hunt, who worked for the Governor’s Office, asked all of the local 
jurisdictions to send their comments to him, so the Governor could use them in his 
“Governor’s Consistency Review” of the Sage Grouse EIS. He felt it was fair to say the 
anxiety level at that meeting was very high statewide due to the pending listing of the 
Sage Grouse as an endangered species. He said questions were raised on whether the 
federal government was doing a good job in implementing their own plans for the Sage 
Grouse habitat preservation based on the feeling by many that they were not controlling 
the wild horse population and inadequate wildfire suppression. He stated one of the 
comments concerned the predation of Sage Grouse and their chicks due to the increase in 
the Raven population. He said that issue should be dealt with outside of the EIS, because 
the federal government did not have jurisdiction over the wildlife in Nevada. He stated 
that jurisdiction belonged to the Nevada Department of Wildlife (NDOW), who had a 
predator control program. He advised the comment period ended January 29, 2014, so 
there would be a quick turnaround to submit any comments. 
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked if the federal government had no control 
over wildlife species within a state, how could they put species on the Endangered 
Species List. Mr. Whitney replied the U.S. Fish and Wildlife Service (USFWS) was the 
agency that would list threatened or endangered species.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if there had been counts done on the Sage 
Grouse in the State and had it been determined their numbers dropped dramatically over 
the last 20 years due to a lack of habitat. Mr. Whitney said there had been counts going 
on for many years. He said Governor Kenny Guinn started local Sage Grouse groups to 
work on Sage Grouse habitat preservation, because he and others saw this coming; and he 
represented the County on those groups. He noted most of counts were done by NDOW, 
because they issued the hunting tags and could control the hunt by how many tags were 
issued. He said they also received information from the hunters regarding the wing 
counts.  
 
 Chad Giesinger, Senior Planner, advised the EIS was one of four sub-
regional components of a nationwide planning strategy to address the decline in the Sage 
Grouse in 11 western states, which was primarily where the Sage Grouse habitat was 
located. He said this subcomponent would be put together with the others when it was 
done and the affected land management agencies would amend their land management 
plans.  
 
 Mr. Giesinger conducted a PowerPoint presentation, which was placed on 
file with the Clerk, covering the background of the Sage Grouse issue, including the 
indentified threats; the EIS Project timeline; the County’s involvement; the EIS planning 
strategy; the Greater Sage Grouse habitat map, focused on Washoe County and only 



PAGE 24  JANUARY 28, 2014  

showed public land habitat; the Draft Preferred Alternative; staff comments/major 
concerns; and the habitat map showing the Sheldon Wildlife Refuge and the Wilderness 
Study Areas (WSA’s), which was the majority of the public land in northern Washoe 
County. 
 
 During the discussion of the identified threats, Commissioner Hartung 
asked about the invasive species/conifer invasion. Mr. Giesinger said the conifer invasion 
was about pinion pine/juniper killing everything under their canopy, creating perching 
locations for Ravens and other predators, and creating an extreme risk for fire.  
 
 Mr. Giesinger explained regarding Commissioner Berkbigler’s earlier 
question, the BLM had jurisdiction over the habitat but not the animals. He stated NDOW 
also managed habitat, but they were responsible for the vegetation. Commissioner 
Berkbigler noted there would not be an option if the Sage Grouse were put on the list. 
Mr. Giesinger said what USFWS was saying was BLM had not adequately managed the 
habitat, so they were being forced to list the Sage Grouse. He stated that listing would 
kick in additional regulations that would force the BLM to do certain things. He said the 
BLM was trying to be proactive and propose regulations, which would allow other uses 
to continue. He stated if they were listed as threatened, it might preclude all activity. 
Commissioner Berkbigler asked if USFWS said specifically what the BLM was not 
doing. Mr. Giesinger said it was essentially about their land management practices.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if the habitat map only showed federally 
held lands and did not include the lands held by the State. Mr. Giesinger said the State 
did not have a lot of land up in that area. Commissioner Hartung stated he asked that 
question because the Nevada Lands Task Force was looking at what lands would come 
into the State and, if we were to ask for all of the lands back, what type of control could 
the federal government exert on us. Mr. Giesinger said they would have no control if the 
lands were to come out of federal ownership, but the USFWS could still make the 
determination the Sage Grouse were threatened and all of that private land would be 
subject to the Endangered Species Act (ESA) regulations. Commissioner Hartung said 
the land would come under the auspices of NDOW. Mr. Giesinger stated the land would 
either go under private ownership or, if it went under State ownership, it would be under 
their management; and the State had an existing management plan that included private 
lands. He said there was a Sage Brush Ecosystem Council who would also be involved, 
so it would not be under the sole purview of NDOW. He stated NDOW had been trying a 
lot of things to improve the Sage Grouse habitat over the last couple of decades, but it 
apparently was not enough. He noted the Sheldon Wildlife Refuge was already managed 
by the USFWS.  
 
 During the review of the Draft Preferred Alternative slides, Mr. Giesinger 
said the EIS introduced the new concept of Required Design Features (RDF’s). He stated 
the EIS would apply the RDF’s throughout the planning area. He said they were basically 
development standards and had been implemented in the past as best management 
practices at the project level, which were guidelines instead of hard and fast rules, which 
they would become under the RDF’s. Commissioner Hartung asked what would preclude 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 25   

building a road. Mr. Giesinger said they wanted to focus everything into existing 
disturbed areas. He stated there was also a no surface occupancy stipulation, which meant 
horizontal drilling would have to be done and the resource would have to be taken out of 
the area for processing. He said that raised a lot of questions about the practicality of that 
approach. He stated the State had to achieve 20 percent in renewable energy, which was a 
big issue that was being negotiated. He stated because the draft preferred alternative EIS 
channeled any new development into previously disturbed areas and there was not much 
disturbance in North Washoe County, the choices of where new development could go 
would be very limited. He noted they could also require new or existing utility lines to be 
buried. Commissioner Hartung asked if they were talking about transmission lines, which 
generated a ton of heat. Mr. Giesinger said the practicality was something staff was 
questioning, because it would be prohibitively expensive along with the question of who 
would pay for it.  
 
 Mr. Giesinger said Exhibit A of the staff report showed a sample of some 
of the comments already submitted. 
 
 During his review of the Staff Comments/Major Concerns slide, Mr. 
Giesinger said the blanket exclusion on new wind and solar was shortsighted, because the 
habitat mapping was based on the best data they had, but it did not substitute for an actual 
biological assessment and impact assessment at a given site. He stated there might be 
areas within the mapped area that did not have any good habitat and could be used for 
wind or solar. He reiterated staff would like to see the RDF’s implemented as BMP’s, 
which would be site specific. He noted staff was concerned the feasibility and cost of 
complying with the RFD’s would make it impossible to build any project. He said if that 
was the intent, then come out and say it rather than hiding behind development standards  
that acted like they were doing something positive. He said staff supported the extensive 
fire management policies, but the document made no mention of how native seed 
collection would happen on the scale needed.   
 
 Mr. Giesinger said most of northern Nevada did not have a Travel 
Management Plan, so staff did not understand what the impacts regarding access would 
be. He said depending on how the management actions were implemented, they might 
exclude any use on the land besides Sage Grouse protection, which would be in 
contravention to the multiple-use doctrine. He stated the amount of land this covered in 
the County made it appear that the County was bearing more of the brunt of this 
regulatory effort than other places and, for example, excluding PGH land from certain 
management actions might be a compromise to offset that impact in the County.  
 
 Commissioner Weber discussed her concerns regarding the listing of the 
Sage Grouse, which pretty much encompassed all of the land in the northern part of her 
District. She asked if staff had the opportunity to object strongly and forcefully to any of 
this. John Slaughter, County Manager, said there was legislation proposed, and he met 
with Senator Reid’s staff last week. He stated he took much of this same information with 
him to that meeting, so they were very aware of the issue, and he also had discussions 
with Marcus Faust about the issue. He felt the Federal Framework/National Association 



PAGE 26  JANUARY 28, 2014  

of Counties (NACo) meeting in Washington, D.C. would be the perfect time to take the 
information and to talk individually with the members of our delegation. Mr. Giesinger 
said in terms of the County taking a stand, we could not affect the outcome of the BLM 
decision per se, but the commenting period was intended to allow local governments the 
opportunity to take a stand on something if they wanted. He stated based on the National 
Environmental Policy Act, the comments regarding the EIS needed to be substantive, had 
to find an error, and there had to be data to back up why what was being proposed would 
not be relevant or would not be effective. He said the County could take a stand and say it 
did not want that much land in the habitat, but it probably would not result in much of an 
outcome in the EIS process. Commissioner Weber said she got that point. She said 
considering tomorrow was the last day they would be taking input, she was not happy 
with staff, because how could she represent the people who lived out there when she only 
had a vague idea of what was going on.  
 
 Commissioner Weber said one point was about the I-11 Corridor coming 
through northern Nevada, which was a huge deal and should be an objection right off the 
bat if we ever wanted it to come through our region. She hoped we definitely would 
suggest the I-11 Corridor could be affected by this. Mr. Whitney said the way an EIS 
happened and the way local jurisdictions got to comment on them over the years, it took a 
lot of time to read and analyze them. He stated he gave Mr. Giesinger a huge amount of 
credit for wading though this EIS and arriving at some critical comments. He said 
because of that, we generally ran our comments by the Board towards the end of the 
process. He stated a lot of times the BLM or the U.S. Forest Service would extend the 
comment periods, which had been requested by the Governor, but he had not heard 
whether the BLM granted that request. He said we needed to assume tomorrow would be 
the day we had to send in our comments. He noted Commissioner Weber’s I-11 Corridor 
comment was an excellent one. He said before Commissioner Berkbigler and Weber 
started going to the meetings, Mr. Giesinger made that comment about I-11 Corridor. He 
said staff was trying to cover all of the bases. Commissioner Weber said she appreciated 
all of the work staff did but, in the future, she hoped the Commissioners could be more 
involved when something impacted their districts, so they could share that information 
with their constituents. Mr. Whitney said he understood why Commissioner Weber felt 
that way because her district was hammered by this EIS. He noted Elko and Humboldt 
Counties were feeling the same way, because they also had a lot of Sage Grouse habitat.  
 
 Mr. Whitney said at the meeting last week, the feeling he got from the 
speakers was the local jurisdictions needed to work with the BLM and the Forest Service 
on this EIS and, along with the State of Nevada, we should try and do everything we 
could to preserve Sage Grouse habitat to keep the bird from being listed. He stated if the 
Sage Grouse was listed, the impression he was getting from the rural areas was it would 
be time to band together and fight the federal government. He said he was not quite sure 
what that meant, but probably would have something to do with going to court.   
 
 Chairman Humke asked if staff worked with the Nevada Association of 
Counties (NACO). Mr. Whitney said staff coordinated with them a fair amount. 
Chairman Humke asked if he heard it stated that most of the Sage Grouse habitat in 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 27   

Nevada was in northern Washoe County. Mr. Whitney replied most of the habitat was in 
Northern Nevada, but Washoe County had a great deal of it. Chairman Humke said some 
of those on the NACO Board had noticed that NACO was pursuing the agenda of the 
rural counties and was more or less ignoring the agenda of the more populated counties. 
He stated this was one area where the rural and the more populated counties came 
together.  He said what he saw was staff not talking to the Commissioner whose District 
contained most of the Sage Grouse habitat and staff deferring because the federal 
government would do what they were going to do. He felt it was time for some activism, 
and he wanted to motivate staff to do something more to get the attention of the federal 
government and the rest of the State.  
 
 Mr. Whitney said Mr. Giesinger did a good critical examination of the EIS 
and there were some important comments to send in. He stated the feeling he was getting 
from the rest of the State was that kind of activism would happen in the political arena, 
but staff was willing to do whatever they needed to do. Chairman Humke said the elected 
officials need to be armed with the information necessary to fight those battles.  
 
 Commissioner Weber asked if it was possible for the Commissioners to 
have a copy of the PowerPoint slides that were presented, because they would be helpful 
to have for any future conversations during the trip to Washington, D.C.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if the comments that had to be turned in 
were going to the Governor. Mr. Whitney said they would be going to the BLM and 
would be copied to the Governor, so he could do a consistency review and then make his 
own comments to the BLM.  
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked about the possible impact of the Sage 
Grouse listing on renewable energy projects. Mr. Whitney discussed an example of a 
wind project in Washoe County that was approved by the Commission a few years ago, 
but was shut down when it was determined there were a number of Golden Eagle nesting 
sites in the area the transmission line would have to cross through to get to Tracy.  
 
3:28 p.m. Chairman Humke left the meeting and Vice Chairperson Weber assumed 

the gavel.  
 
 Mr. Giesinger said the point Commissioner Hartung raised regarding the 
economic impact had been one of the main concerns brought up during the BLM’s public 
meetings. He advised the EIS section regarding the economic impact was fairly obtuse, 
which made it hard to draw any conclusions. Commissioner Hartung said unfortunately 
that was probably intentional and it saddened him that we had to fight this battle. Mr. 
Giesinger said the County might be most effective in working with the BLM on some of 
the design features. Commissioner Hartung suggested one of the arguments staff could 
write up fairly quickly was about the sheer size of the area in Nevada and in Washoe 
County. Mr. Giesinger replied there was such a comment already. Vice Chairperson 
Weber believed it was important to share what the impacts would be on Washoe County 
with Senators Harry Reid and Dean Heller, and staff needed to have direct points that 



PAGE 28  JANUARY 28, 2014  

could be taken to them. Commissioner Hartung agreed, but the County was up against the 
wall regarding the comment period right now, so he felt the Board had to give direction 
to staff to come up with some comments and to try and make a cogent argument on why 
this had such a detrimental effect on Washoe County. He completely agreed we should 
concentrate on Washoe County’s numbers and fight our own battles, and each of the 
other county’s would do the same. He said all of that data would be collected, pooled, 
and then they could start adding up the total numbers. Mr. Whitney said there was less 
than 24 hours to send in the comments on the draft EIS to the BLM. He said the 
Reid/Heller bill was open for comment. He stated at the statewide meeting, there was a 
whole lot of comment about people not liking certain pieces of that legislation. He said 
the Senators’ representatives were there and were looking for comments due to it still 
being a draft.   
 
 Commissioner Hartung asked if the legislation went through and they sort 
of fence off Nevada lands and then the County, through the Nevada Lands Task Force, 
end up getting back control of our lands, would that be an encumbrance and would we 
still have to follow those federal guidelines or would we be able to manage it through our 
State process. Mr. Whitney said the BLM and the Forest Service would be relinquishing 
control of the lands they managed in the State, but the federal agency in charge of the 
Endangered Species act would remain in control over the Sage Grouse or other 
threatened species, and the habitat was on the land. Mr. Giesinger said Fish and Wildlife 
Service could compel any landowner to do certain actions based on protecting the 
endangered species.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
  
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked staff to include the comments about the  
I-11 corridor if they had not already done so. Commissioner Hartung asked if the 
proposed I-11 route went through Washoe County. Vice Chairman Weber said there was 
no certain direction right now and in March or April the alternatives would start to be 
looked at. Commissioner Berkbigler said even though there was not a proposed route, 
there were a number of potential routes the Committee was looking at, and several went 
through Washoe County. She said it was an appropriate comment to make, particularly 
since it was so important to the community. Vice Chairperson Weber felt our 
congressional representatives had to be reminded about the I-11 corridor.  
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 13 be accepted and staff be directed to forward the comments to the Bureau 
of Land Management in the staff report and to include the comment regarding the I-11 
corridor.  
 
14-81 AGENDA ITEM 17 – MANAGER 
 
Agenda Subject: “Recommendation to review and approve the 2014-15 Washoe 
County Strategic Plan, including mission, vision and values; strategic objectives; 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 29   

strategic goals, and goal measures; and acknowledge the Mid-year Status Report for 
the 2013-14 Washoe County Strategic Plan--Manager. (All Commission Districts.)” 
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, said staff reviewed the goal statements 
and made some suggestions, but did not recommend doing a complete update of the 
Strategic Plan for this year. He reviewed the Strategic Plan PowerPoint presentation 
slides, which included the Vision and Mission Statements, the Organizational Values, the 
Strategic Objectives and Goals, and the Manager’s Focus Areas. A copy of the 
presentation was placed on file with the Clerk. He said he was recommending the next 
Strategic Planning retreat take place after the elections in November, so the Commission 
could determine if a shift in direction was needed. He stated that would also allow the 
Commissioner Elects to sit in. He said a mid-year report of the County’s performance 
metrics was included in the backup, and provided staff with some good information prior 
to the start of the budget process. He stated page 6 included a building condition index 
and explained what had happened to the buildings over the years while having to defer 
maintenance during the economic downturn.  
 
 Vice Chairperson Weber agreed those documents would be helpful to have 
available during the budget meetings. She said she had some ideas of changing some 
words around on page 2 and she would share those ideas with Mr. Slaughter offline to see 
if her ideas worked.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Berkbigler, seconded by Commissioner 
Hartung, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 17 be approved and acknowledged. 
 
14-82 AGENDA ITEM 15 – FINANCE 
 
Agenda Subject: “Update and status report on Fiscal Year 2014/15 Budget--Finance.  
(All Commission Districts.”  
 
 John Slaughter, County Manager, said the budget process was just 
beginning. He acknowledged Anna Heenan, Kim Carlson, Lori Cook, Dan North, and 
Cynthia Washburn, who were the County’s budget staff that would be putting the budget 
information together to propose to the Board. He reviewed the PowerPoint included with 
the staff report dated January 10, 2014. He said many of the charts would be familiar due 
to them being used over the last several years, but they had been updated to show where 
we were today. He said the sales and property taxes represented 77 percent of the General 
Fund revenue. He stated the assessed values leveled and were expected to rise in the next 
year. He said the 3 and 8 percent abatements were still in effect and would limit any 
property tax increases. He stated in the first four months of this Fiscal Year, the trend for 
sales tax revenues was slightly above what was budgeted. He said many of the increased 
costs were due to mandates and those increases were offset by making deeper cuts for 
general government, culture, and recreation programs.  



PAGE 30  JANUARY 28, 2014  

 
 Commissioner Berkbigler asked if the welfare area would be impacted by 
the increase in Medicaid. Kevin Schiller, Assistant County Manager, replied we would 
see a shift in Medicaid from the existing clients that the County was expending dollars on 
to indigent health care. Commissioner Berkbigler said that was more a case of moving 
money from one bucket to another bucket. 
 
 Mr. Slaughter said the guiding theme in developing the current year’s 
budget was flat was the new up, because for the first time in several years across the 
board cuts were not needed. He stated the small increase in revenue helped cover the 
unavoidable increases, such as employee merit and Public Employees Retirement System 
(PERS) rate increases.    
 
 Commissioner Hartung said he understood the property taxes were 
capped, but asked when the assessments went up did people generally pay more because 
the house was assessed at a higher value. Mr. Slaughter said the 3 percent cap for 
residential and 8 percent cap for commercial properties was the most the taxes could be 
raised. Commissioner Hartung said that meant the increase could not go up more than 3 
percent, even though the assessed value might climb at a much higher rate. Mr. Slaughter 
said that was correct. He stated everyone was worried about the increasing property 
values when those caps were put into place, but there was no thought about what would 
happen when the property values declined and the climb out of that decline started to 
occur. He said now every jurisdiction statewide was facing that issue. Commissioner 
Hartung asked if that could be something the Legislature might revisit. Mr. Slaughter said 
a discussion was occurring statewide and was very loud in Southern Nevada, but he did 
not know if the discussion would gain any ground anytime soon.  
 
 Mr. Slaughter noted there probably would never be the additional funding 
resources that would allow things to return to the way they were before the recession. He 
said that meant the County needed to continue to find efficiencies, so its limited resources 
could be focused on the highest strategic priorities. He stated any above-base requests 
would need to be linked to the strategic priorities and those requests should be made only 
after exhausting all other attempts to meet the service level requirements.  
 
 There was no public comment on this item. 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Hartung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, it was ordered that 
Agenda Item 15 be accepted. 
 
14-83 AGENDA ITEM 19 – REPORTS AND UPDATES 
 
Agenda Subject: “Reports/updates from County Commission members concerning 
various boards/commissions they may be a member of or liaison to.” 
 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 31   

 Commissioner Hartung said he attended the Investment Committee 
meeting, and he reported the County’s investments were doing okay given the market 
environment. He said the County’s conservative approach in its investment strategy 
allowed the County to maintain its capital and not put it on the line, which was a wise 
approach to take. He stated the Nevada Lands Task Force meeting was held on Friday, 
and he asked staff to supply the Commissioners with the report Mike Baughman gave 
that listed the adjoining states that regained control of their lands and the revenue 
sources. He felt that information would be helpful to look at so similar issues could be 
compared, and to do the math. He said he was skeptical about this in the beginning, but 
the way the numbers were looking, it got his attention. He reiterated it was not the 
County’s decision. He said he would deliver the County’s position to the Task Force, 
which would deliver the entire position to the State to make the ultimate decision on 
whether to move forward.    
 
 Commissioner Hartung said staff was programmatically looking at how 
the County dealt with infestations of bedbugs. He said Social Services had to deal with 
some infestations when pulling kids out of an at risk environment when they had bedbugs 
in their personal belongings, which made the County liable for the infestation occurring 
in a foster home. He believed there were some ways to reduce the County’s exposure. He 
said once the protocols were changed, he wanted to bring them back to the Commission 
and to have staff periodically report on what the expenditures were after the change and 
what they were now. He said he would also like to move into a training program to train 
Social Services staff and many of the first responders how to deal with the infestations. 
He stated eventually that training program would be expanded and provided to the area’s 
resort community, because it affected the area’s bottom line. Vice Chairperson Weber 
asked if this should start with Social Services or the Health Department. Commissioner 
Hartung said it broached a lot of arenas, but it was intended to start in Social Services. 
Vice Chairperson Weber stated staff already knew this could be an agenda item, and once 
the information was before the Board, we could determine if that was the direction the 
Board wanted to go. Commissioner Hartung said those were policy changes that started 
with Social Services, and he did not know if the Board made those kinds of basic 
decisions. Vice Chairman Weber said staff should figure that out and should bring it back 
to the Board.  
 
 Commissioner Jung said there was a District Board of Health strategic 
retreat last week. She stated a self-assessment was done to identify where things were 
being done well, where they were not, and the reasons why. She said three areas were 
identified where work was needed, and the first was to have a real plan on the direction 
the District expected to go in the future. She noted a contract was signed with the new 
District Health Officer, Kevin Dick. She stated now that he was no longer the interim 
Officer, it would provide some much needed stability for the staff who had been on quite 
the rollercoaster ride. She said the District had been in need of somebody who would be a 
great administrator, and she believed he would do a great job because that was where his 
main strength was.  
 



PAGE 32  JANUARY 28, 2014  

 Commissioner Jung said she attended the Western Nevada Development 
Department’s “Investing in Manufacturing Community Partnership Strategic Session,” 
which came out of the Regional Jobs Network. She said it was a federal designation for 
an area based on looking at what was already done in manufacturing. She stated the 
designation did not mean any more money, but would help when applying for grants, 
especially when looking at the drone industry and ramping it up to create jobs sooner 
rather than later. She said the District Board of Health directed staff to work in 
conjunction with Social and Adult Services on the cradle-to-grave issues. She said there 
would be a meeting of the Community Assistance Center Transitional Governing Board. 
She stated she heard Salt Lake City virtually eliminated homelessness by housing the 
homeless in abandoned homes, and she would ask them to do some research on doing 
that here. She said she would be attending the Nevada Association of Counties’ 
(NACO’s) video conference on aging.  
 
 Commissioner Berkbigler said Friday she attended the Regional Shared 
Federal Framework meeting and was preparing for the Washington, D.C. trip to address 
the Regional Shared Federal Framework issues and other issues specific to Washoe 
County. She said the Internal Audit Committee would be meeting on February 5th, and 
Tahoe Regional Planning Agency (TRPA) would be meeting tomorrow. She said TRPA 
and the Tahoe Transportation District (TTD) asked her to find an appointee to attend their 
meetings if she could not. She stated she was in the process of interviewing several 
people and would bring that back to the Board to ensure those people fit in with the 
County’s needs as it related to those Boards. She said the TTD would be meeting on 
February 14, 2014. She stated she met with North Tahoe Fire Protection District 
(NTFPD) regarding fire suppression issues in Incline Village due to the dry climate.  
 
 Vice Chairperson Weber said the video conference on aging was canceled 
and would be held before the middle of March so the information could be used when 
looking at budgets. She stated there would be a NACO meeting on February 21st. She 
attended the Shared Federal Framework meeting, along with a NACO meeting. She said 
the Shared Federal Framework meeting discussed its objectives and what would be 
occurring in Washington, D.C. She stated she would be attending the American Public 
Transportation Association conference right after the other meetings in Washington, D.C. 
She stated the Reno Sparks Convention and Visitors Authority (RSCVA) meeting was 
held last week and the idea of doing a strategic planning session was brought up. She said 
the Chairman was putting something together, which could be a planning session or just a 
discussion. She said there would be a Nevada Works Board meeting on February 14th.  
 
4:24 p.m. On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, 

which motion duly carried with Chairman Humke absent, the Board 
adjourned until the time certain for the Work Card Permit Appeal. It was 
further ordered that the meeting would be adjourned from the Caucus 
Room at the conclusion of the final Public Comment. 

 
4:40 p.m.  The Board convened in closed session for the purpose of hearing the Work 

Card Permit Appeal for Kathy Haaby. 



JANUARY 28, 2014  PAGE 33   

 
5:27 p.m. The Board reconvened in open session. 
 
14-84 AGENDA ITEM 18 – WORK CARD PERMIT APPEAL 
 
Agenda Subject:  “WORK CARD PERMIT APPEAL - Kathy Haaby” 
 
 On motion by Commissioner Jung, seconded by Commissioner 
Berkbigler, which motion duly carried, it was ordered that the appellant, Kathy Haaby, be 
granted the ability to be issued a Work Card Permit based on the information presented 
during the closed session.  
 
14-85 AGENDA ITEM 22 – PUBLIC COMMENT 
 
Agenda Subject: “Public Comment. Comment heard under this item will be limited 
to three minutes per person and may pertain to matters both on and off the 
Commission agenda. The Commission will also hear public comment during 
individual action items, with comment limited to three minutes per person. 
Comments are to be made to the Commission as a whole.” 
 
 There was no response to the call for public comment. 
 
 * * * * * * * * * * * 
 
5:31 p.m. There being no further business to discuss, on motion by Commissioner 
Jung, seconded by Commissioner Hartung, which motion duly carried, the meeting was 
adjourned.  
 
 
 
 
      _____________________________ 
      DAVID HUMKE, Chairman 
      Washoe County Commission 
ATTEST:  
 
 
 
 
 
______________________________ 
NANCY PARENT, County Clerk and 
Clerk of the Board of County Commissioners 
 
Minutes Prepared by: 
Jan Frazzetta, Deputy County Clerk  














































































	14-55 AGENDA ITEM 3 – PUBLIC COMMENT
	14-56 AGENDA ITEM 4 – ANNOUNCEMENTS
	14-57 AGENDA ITEM 5 – HUMAN RESOURCES
	14-58 AGENDA ITEM 6
	14-59 AGENDA ITEM 7A
	14-60 AGENDA ITEM 7B – ASSESSOR
	14-61 AGENDA ITEM 7C – FINANCE
	14-62 AGENDA ITEM 7D(1) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-63 AGENDA ITEM 7D(2) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-64 AGENDA ITEM 7D(3) – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-65 AGENDA ITEM 7E(1) – DISTRICT COURT
	14-66 AGENDA ITEM 7E(2) – DISTRICT COURT
	14-67 AGENDA ITEM 7E(3) – DISTRICT COURT
	14-68 AGENDA ITEM 7F(1) – SHERIFF
	14-69 AGENDA ITEM 7F(2) – SHERIFF
	14-70 AGENDA ITEM 7F(3) – SHERIFF
	14-71 AGENDA ITEM 7G(1) – SOCIAL SERVICES
	14-72 AGENDA ITEM 7G(2) – SOCIAL SERVICES
	14-73 AGENDA ITEM 12 – FINANCE
	14-74 AGENDA ITEM 16 – MANAGER
	14-75 AGENDA ITEM 11 – DISTRICT ATTORNEY
	14-76 AGENDA ITEM 9 – SENIOR SERVICES
	14-77 AGENDA ITEM 10 – SENIOR SERVICES
	14-78 AGENDA ITEM 14 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-79 AGENDA ITEM 20 – CLOSED SESSION
	14-80 AGENDA ITEM 13 – COMMUNITY SERVICES
	14-81 AGENDA ITEM 17 – MANAGER
	14-82 AGENDA ITEM 15 – FINANCE
	14-83 AGENDA ITEM 19 – REPORTS AND UPDATES
	14-84 AGENDA ITEM 18 – WORK CARD PERMIT APPEAL
	14-85 AGENDA ITEM 22 – PUBLIC COMMENT

